### ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL

## Minutes of the meeting held on 5 December 2013

**PRESENT:** Councillor Gwilym O Jones (Chair) (Items 4, 6, 7, 9, 10 and 12

from 3:10 pm onwards)

Councillor Raymond Jones (Vice-Chair) (In the Chair from 2:00 pm

until 3:10 pm)

Councillors R Dew, Jeffrey M.Evans, Ann Griffith, John Griffith, D R Hughes, K P Hughes, T Ll Hughes, Vaughan Hughes, Victor Hughes, W T Hughes, A M Jones, Carwyn Jones,

H E Jones, R LI Jones, R.Meirion Jones, Richard Owain Jones, Alun W Mummery, R G Parry OBE (from 3:10 pm onwards), Dylan Rees, J A Roberts, Nicola Roberts, P S Rogers, Alwyn Rowlands, Dafydd Rhys Thomas and Ieuan Williams

**IN ATTENDANCE:** Chief Executive

**Deputy Chief Executive** 

Director of Sustainable Development

**Director of Community** 

Director of Lifelong Learning

Head of Function (Legal and Administration) Principal Tourism Development Officer

Committee Services Manager

**APOLOGIES:** Councillors Lewis Davies, Jim Evans and Llinos Medi Huws

#### PRESENTATION - TOUR DE MÔN

The Principal Tourism Development Officer and the Portfolio Holder for Economic Development, Tourism and Leisure presented a short video of the Tour de Môn Cycling Race held on 1<sup>st</sup> September, 2013, together with a review of 2013 events held on the Island.

The Vice-Chair mentioned that the Chair, Councillor G O Jones and Councillor Bob Parry, OBE, would both be delayed in view of the fact that they were attending the funeral of Mr Dennis Burns, husband of former Councillor Mrs Bessie Burns.

### 1 MINUTES

Submitted and confirmed as a true record, the minutes of the meetings of the County Council held on the following dates:-

- 10<sup>th</sup> October, 2013 (11:30am) (Extraordinary)
- 10<sup>th</sup> October, 2013 (2:00pm)

RESOLVED to confirm the minutes of the meetings of the County Council held on the above dates, subject to noting that Councillor Dylan Rees had been present for the morning meeting but had apologised for the afternoon meeting.

#### 2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST

None received.

# TO RECEIVE ANY ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRPERSON, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL, EXECUTIVE OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chief Executive extended his congratulations to the Social Services Department in respect of the following:-

Adults' Services hosted 2 prestigious national networks at the end of last month. The first was the All Wales Strategy for Older People's Co-ordinators network which met on the Island on 18<sup>th</sup> November. The network includes senior officers from the Health and Social Services Directorate of Welsh Government, Welsh Local Government Association Equalities Department, Ageing Well in Wales lead from the Commissioner for Older People's office. Discussions are focused around Local Authorities signing up to the Dublin Declaration [which we signed in September, 2013] and the programme of work around the Ageing Well in Wales network.

Secondly, on 19 November, the Age Friendly Communities steering group meeting was hosted by Anglesey. AFC is an Ireland-Wales INTERREG funded project which brings together five partners in Ireland and Wales to develop intergenerational strategies (local and transnational) and to pilot activities to encourage community cohesion and social inclusion.

Both national networks came together at the end of the second day for a networking high tea led by the Council's Leader, Chairman of the Council and the Champions for Older People and Carers. This was attended by both national interests and representatives of our local services for older people (Age Well, Older People's Forum) as well as recipients of our local Age Friendly projects – for example Parc Mwd, Valley and the Allotments at Benllech.

On Thursday 28 November 2012, Carl Sargeant AM (Welsh Government Minister for Housing and Regeneration) visited one of the Supported Housing projects for people with substance and alcohol misuse needs in Llangefni. The Eilianfa Scheme is funded by the Supporting People Programme and is based in the centre of the community. The visit had been arranged following a request made by the Welsh Government to visit two supported housing schemes in North Wales for substance and alcohol misusers. The other project visited was in Flintshire. £18,194.16 is invested for the provision of housing related support services for two people in Eilianfa which is owned by Tai Eryri. The support service is provided by CAIS as an organisation which has expertise in dealing with people with alcohol and substance misuse needs.

The Minister spent some time on his own with the two service users discussing their personal experiences and their experience of living in the supported housing scheme. It was evident that he was very favourably impressed by the two individuals, the scheme and the support. He was very complimentary about the scheme and the Supporting People Programme generally across Wales which is responsible for 70% of the budget annual budget that he is responsible for.

Congratulations were also extended to the Housing Department with regard to the following:-

An extremely successful annual meeting was held by Anglesey Communities First. The Director of the Anti-Poverty Department of the Welsh Government remarked that this scheme is a flagship for Wales and that additional funding had been provided for a pilot scheme to get workless households back into employment.

The Housing Services were placed in the top three housing organisations throughout Wales in the category of Housing Regenerating Communities, and have been recognised as an example of good practice in the Chartered Institute of Housing Wales new publication for the second year in succession for their initiative that provides financial assistance for first time buyers purchasing a property that has been vacant for at least 6 months.

Councillor K P Hughes, Portfolio Holder wished to minute his appreciation to the staff of the Housing and Social Services Department for their work in this respect.

The Chief Executive mentioned that the Welsh Young Farmers Eisteddfod was held at Mona on Saturday, 16<sup>th</sup> November, 2013. It was a pleasure to welcome them here to Anglesey and the Chair of the Council and other Members were in attendance on the day to view the competitions.

The Chief Executive also mentioned that an invitation was extended to Members to attend the Anglesey Staff Awards Ceremony for 2013 at 2:30 pm this Friday.

Congratulations were extended to Sam, the son of Councillor R Dew who had won the World Powerlifting Championship at Glasgow on 2<sup>nd</sup> November, 2013.

Congratulations were extended to Gwenno Pugh originally from Penmynydd upon winning the Fferm Factor competition on S4C last night.

On a sadder note, the Chief Executive extended the Council's sympathy to the family of Mr John Rowlands, former Headteacher of Ysgol Uwchradd Caergybi and Deputy Director of Education for Gwynedd Council.

Sympathy was also extended to Lord Stanley of Alderley, who died recently aged 86. His family played a prominent part in the history of Holyhead town. Lord Stanley was a Member of the House of Lords until 1999. He spent more than 40 years as President of the Holyhead lifeboat and was Patron of Holyhead's Ucheldre Centre and Maritime Museum as well as a member of the Friends of St Cybi and the Anglesey Antiquarian Society.

The Vice-Chair also extended his deepest sympathy to Mrs Bessie Burns, former Councillor and Chair of this County Council upon the recent loss of her husband Dennis.

Condolences were also extended to any Member of the Council or staff who had suffered bereavement. Members and Officers stood in silent tribute as a mark of respect.

## 4 QUESTIONS RECEIVED PURSUANT TO RULE 4.1.12.2 OF THE CONSTITUTION

• Submitted - The following question on notice by Councillor Bob Parry, OBE, to the Leader of the Council:-

"Is the Council willing to establish a cross party panel to be ready to respond to the Williams report on reducing the number of Councils in Wales?"

The Leader of the Council in reply stated:-

"I think it is very sensible to establish a cross party Panel. I think it is a little premature. What it is, is a review of the public sector and not cutting down on the number of Councils."

The following supplementary question was asked by Councillor Bob Parry, OBE:-

"I still stick to the same question because I think it is important that we are ready, because there are certain things in the report which equate to ideas regarding a reduction in the number of Councils. I do think when the time is right, we need to establish a Panel."

The Leader in response stated:-

"Yes, I think you have misunderstood me. I think it is sensible that we do, and I agree, and we will do that. Thank you."

• Submitted - The following question on notice by Councillor Bob Parry, OBE, to the Portfolio Holder for Social Services and Housing:-

"How many Council house tenants have been evicted from their homes because they have been unable to pay the bedroom tax?"

Councillor K P Hughes, Portfolio Holder for Social Services and Housing in reply stated:

"In response to your question, we have not so far evicted any tenants from Council houses due to inability to pay bedroom tax. Eviction is always a last resort and everything possible will have been done by the Authority and partner agencies to enable tenants to keep their tenancies. Before we go down this road, the Housing Department will present a report to the Executive."

The following supplementary question was asked by Councillor Bob Parry, OBE:-

"Thank you. I am pleased that a report will come to the Executive because I think some Councils have already taken steps to try and overcome this problem. But the question I was going to ask was when the Housing Department lets houses are they more careful that they don't let 3 bedroomed houses to one person?"

Councillor K P Hughes in responses stated:-

"Yes, I think they have to be more careful for obvious reasons because we don't want the problem to come about."

 Submitted - The following question on notice by Councillor Trevor Lloyd Hughes, to the Portfolio Holders for Social Services and Housing:-

"I would like to know in detail, the latest position regarding the closure of the County Council's homes for the elderly on Anglesey, with particular reference to Garreglwyd residential home, Holyhead, with details regarding meetings with staff at the home to explain the situation to them."

Councillor K P Hughes, Portfolio Holder for Social Services and Housing in reply stated:-

"The Council resolved during July 2013 to accept the messages received during the consultation between October-December 2012.

It was resolved to maintain the current status of the Residential Homes and to establish a project in order to ensure that plans would be developed regarding the future intentions of the Council with regard to suitable accommodation and the community provision available.

All residents in our residential homes were consulted during May confirming the officers' intention to submit recommendations to Council and that there would be no change in relation to their care. It was confirmed that we would contact them further as the programme develops.

The Project Board was established as part of the Council's transformation Programme which prioritises the development of adults services.

Within this programme priority was given to:

- Development of Extra Care Housing Amlwch area
- Strengthening Enabling services which empower individuals to live at home.

Within the programme the detailed plans regarding the above will be presented to the Programme Board at the end of January so that they can be considered by the Council between February and March. Together with capacity considerations, priority was given to the above programmes but it is also intended to consider the Extra Care Housing needs of the Llangefni area and then the South of the Island within the programme as well. It is also intended to consider dementia services with this programme starting in Spring.

The Council resolved (July 8) to maintain the present access status of Garreglwyd Home, which is not to accept permanent placements, but to urge the use of the home for respite care:

"Confirm the present use of the Authority's 6 residential homes. This has included restricting the use of any empty places at Garreglwyd, Holyhead for respite care only".

This decision was based on avoiding putting vulnerable adults in a situation of being placed while there was any doubt about the future of the home. The intention was to ensure consistency for the present residents whilst the Programme Board could consider the work programme in its entirety and report back based on knowledge. The intention is to present further information regarding the situation as part of the transformation programme within this present financial year.

Regular meetings were held with staff in every residential home over the recent period. Meetings will be held with Unions as well every two weeks.

Despite the challenge posed by this programme we believe that we will be able to keep to the timetable that has been agreed within the Board's arrangements."

The following supplementary question was asked by Councillor T Lloyd Hughes:-

"The staff in these homes don't know what is going on. Senior Officers in the Department have not been visiting the homes. You talk about respite going to Garreglwyd – how many more beds are you moving from Garreglwyd? Just think, if you worked there, how would you feel about what's going on? Nobody knows. Two beds have already gone from there".

Councillor K P Hughes in reply stated:-

"Since I don't have the information to hand, I will come back to you in written format over the next fortnight."

## 5 MINUTES FOR INFORMATION - IMPROVEMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY BOARD

Submitted for information, the minutes of the meeting of the Anglesey Improvement and Sustainability Board on 23<sup>rd</sup> October, 2013.

RESOLVED to note the contents of the minutes.

#### 6 CORPORATE PLAN 2013-17

Submitted – The report of the Deputy Chief Executive on the Draft Corporate Plan for 2013-17 which contained the Council's aim, focus areas and outcomes which

this Authority would be working towards in order to make a difference to the lives of Anglesey citizens over the next four years.

It was reported verbally by the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Governance that the Executive on 2nd December, 2013, upon consideration of the Plan had resolved to recommend to the County Council:-

"To accept that the draft Corporate Plan sets out the Council's agenda for the remainder of the term up to 2017 and to authorise officers in collaboration with the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Governance to make minor changes prior to publication on the Council's website".

### **RESOLVED** to endorse the above recommendation of the Executive.

#### 7 TIMING OF MEETINGS

Reported by the Interim Head of Democratic Services – That in accordance with statutory guidance, the Council was required to survey Members in respect of the times at which meetings of a local authority are held, preferably shortly after a new Council was elected. The views of Members and Co-opted Members had been sought requesting them to rank in order of preference meeting times of 10:00am, 2:00pm, 4:00pm and 6:00pm. From the feedback received there was a clear preference for meetings to continue at either 10:00am or 2:00pm. Details of arrangements in the other North Wales Authorities were also listed in the report.

The Leader of the Plaid Cymru Group stated that some of his Members were finding it difficult because of work commitments to attend meetings of the Council during the day. If the Council wanted these new Councillors to stand again at the next election, then the Council had to be more accommodating in their requirements. He considered that Group Leaders and the SLT should discuss the matter further and report back to the County Council as soon as possible.

RESOLVED to defer consideration and that the matter be considered further by Group Leaders and the SLT (including an Equality Impact Assessment) to ascertain the feasibility of convening some meetings at either 4:00 pm or 4:30 pm. The outcome of such deliberations to be reported back to the County Council at the earliest opportunity.

#### 8 POLITICAL BALANCE

Reported by the Interim Head of Democratic Services – That the Council needed to review the political balance arrangements on its Committees following notice that one Member had ceased to be a Member of the Labour Group. The proposed changes were highlighted on the matrix attached to the report. In accordance with political management protocols the revised political management arrangements had been discussed with Group Leaders.

Councillor Dylan Rees enquired as to whether or not it was good practice to have both Labour Councillors on the Executive, bearing in mind that the Labour Group

only had two Members on the Council out of a complement of thirty? Did this need to be considered by the Executive if political balance applied?

The Leader in response stated that he would discuss the matter with the Deputy Leader and forward a written response thereon to Councillor Dylan Rees.

#### **RESOLVED**

- To confirm the political balance arrangements and the number of seats allocated to each of the Groups under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, and the number of seats given by custom and practice to the Members not subject to political balance as set out in the matrix;
- In accordance with recommendation (i) above, the Council delegates to the Chief Executive in consultation with Group Leaders to determine the allocation of seats to Unaffiliated Members arising from these changes and advise the Committee Services Manager accordingly;
- That the Labour Group Leader be requested to provide details of committee membership to the Committee Services Manager as soon as possible in accordance with the changes highlighted in this report."

# 9 CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION (PARA 3.5.3.15.5) AND TO THE PLANNING PROCEDURE RULES (SECTION 4.6 OF THE CONSTITUTION)

- a) Submitted A joint report by the Head of Regulation and the Legal Services Manager as submitted to the Executive on 21st October, 2013.
- b) Reported That the Executive at its meeting on 21st October, 2013, had resolved to recommend to the County Council "that the changes to the Rules in the Council's Constitution as detailed in the Appendices to this report are made and that authority be given to Officers to make the relevant changes to the Constitution".

RESOLVED to endorse the above recommendation of the Executive.

# 10 TO MAKE CHANGES TO THE PLANNING PROCEDURE RULES (SECTION 4.6 OF THE CONSTITUTION) PERMANENT

Submitted -The report of the Legal Services Manager as submitted to the Executive on 4th November, 2013.

Reported -That the Executive at its meeting on 4th November, 2013 had resolved to recommend to the County Council:-

• "That it makes permanent the changes to the Council Constitution clarifying which planning applications by officers, and by the relatives of members and officers, should be reserved for decision by the Planning Committee;

- Not to make permanent changes to restrict members at the Planning Committee to only participating if they had attended all previous meetings on that item (to include any official site visit);
- Not make permanent changes to prevent a local member on the Committee from voting, proposing or seconding on an application in their ward."

RESOLVED to endorse the above recommendations of the Executive.

### 11 MOTION RECEIVED PURSUANT TO RULE 4.1.2.2.12 OF THE CONSTITUTION

Submitted –The following Notice of Motion by Councillor Aled Morris Jones, and countersigned by Councillors Bob Parry, OBE, Kenneth P Hughes, Dylan Rees, and Jim Evans.

"We, the undersigned, request that the Isle of Anglesey County Council grant the Freedom of the County to the Royal Navy and the Merchant Navy Association.

This is in recognition of keeping sea lanes safe the trade that exists between the United Kingdom and the rest of the World. This granting of the Freedom should be seen as an event to commemorate The Great War of 1914-1918 and the 70<sup>th</sup> Anniversary of the Battle of the Atlantic."

Councillor A Morris Jones spoke in support of the Motion.

It was unanimously RESOLVED to agree to the request, and that officers be requested to make the necessary arrangements.

#### 12 DELEGATIONS

The Chief Executive will present for information, a report seeking out any changes to the scheme of delegation relating to the Executive functions made by the Executive, or the Leader since the last Ordinary meeting (Rule 4.4.1.1.2 of the Executive Procedure Rules of the Constitution refers).

RESOLVED to note the contents of the report.

The meeting concluded at 3.35 pm

COUNCILLOR G O JONES
CHAIR